SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 13, 2009
9:27 a.m

9:27: 55 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 9:27 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co-Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Senator Hollis French; Sue Stancliff, Special Assistant,
Departnment of Public Safety; Anne Carpeneti, Assistant
Attorney Ceneral, Legal Services Section-Juneau, OCrim nal
Di vi si on, Department  of Law; WIlliam Streur, Deputy
Conmi ssioner, Medicaid & Health Care Policy, Departnent of
Heal th and Social Services; Senator Kevin Myer; Deborah
Bi t ney, Di rector, Per manent Fund D vision; Christine
Mar asi gan, Staff, Senator Kevin Meyer; Darwin Peterson,
Staff, Co-Chair Stedman; Charles Swanton, Director, Division
of Sport Fish, Departnment of Fish and Gane; Andy Szczesny,
Owmner Al aska Fish and Float, Kenai; Reuben Hanke, Self,
Sol dotna; Steve McClure, self, Kenai; David Coggia, self;
Ri cky Gease, Executive Director, Kenai River Sport Fishing
Associ ati on.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Oin Dym Forensic Lab Supervisor, Crine Lab Supervisor,
Department of Public Safety; Bill Oberly, Alaska |Innocence
Project; John Lucking, Police Chief Soldotna; Gary Turner,
chair, Kenai College; Beverly Mnn, Self; Mlvin G ove,
Mat su, Sel f.

SUVMVARY
SB 10 "An Act requiring health care insurers to provide

i nsurance coverage for nedical care received by a
patient during certain approved clinical trials

Senat e Finance Committee 1 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



SB 110

SB 133

SB 171

SB 177

#sb10

designed to test and i mprove preventi on,
di agnosis, treatnment, or palliation of cancer;
directing the Departnment of Health and Social
Services to provide Medicaid services to persons
who participate in those clinical trials; relating
to experinental procedures under a state plan
offered by the Conprehensive Health |Insurance
Associ ation; and providing for an effective date.”

SB 10 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD
"An Act relating to the preservation of evidence."

SB 110 was HEARD and HELD in Conmittee for further
consi derati on.

"An Act creating a statewide electronic health
i nformati on exchange system and providing for an
effective date.”

SB 133 was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass" recommendation and a new fiscal inpact note
fromthe Departnent of Health and Social Services.

"An Act relating to the permanent fund dividend of
an otherwi se qualified individual who dies during
the qualifying year; and providing for an
effective date.”

SB 171 was HEARD and HELD in Conmittee for further
consi derati on.

"An Act repealing the term nation of |icensing and
regul ation of sport fishing operators and sport
fishing guides and licensing and registration of
sport fishing vessels; and providing for an
effective date.”

SB 177 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

SENATE BILL NO. 10

"An Act requiring health care insurers to provide
i nsurance coverage for nedical care received by a
patient during certain approved clinical trials
designed to test and inprove prevention, diagnosis,
treatnment, or palliation of cancer; directing the
Department of Health and Social Services to provide
Medi caid services to persons who participate in those
clinical trials; relating to experinental procedures

under

a state plan offered by the Conprehensive Health

Senat e Finance Committee 2 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



| nsurance Association; and providing for an effective
date."

SB 10 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD
9: 28: 08 AM

#sb110
SENATE BILL NO. 110

"An Act relating to the preservation of evidence."

9:29:13 AM

SENATOR HOLLI' S FRENCH

The Anmerican system of justice is founded on bal anci ng
the twin protections of the rights of those harned by
crimes, and the rights of +the accused. Crim nal
convictions are guided by evidence of innocence or
guilt, and no one in the crimnal justice system wants
i nnocent people to be convicted of crinmes they did not
commt. The availability and use of physical evidence
at trials and during appeals is a critical piece of a
meani ngful justice system

Moder n DNA t echnol ogy, coupl ed W th today’ s
conpr ehensi ve i nformation and conmmuni cat i ons
technol ogi es, has exponentially increased the power of
preserved evidence. Preserved evidence can solve cold
cases and prove or disprove clains of innocence in ways
uni magi nable just a few years ago. The problem is
however, that evidence collection and preservation
policies have not always kept pace with these new
t echnol ogi es.

Senate Bill 110 begins to address this issue by
requiring that biological evidence in nmurder and sexual
assault cases is properly retained while cases are
unsol ved and during the period after conviction that an
of fender is inprisoned or required to register as a sex

of f ender. The bill still provides for police
departnments to return or dispose of evidence too |arge
to keep after portions of the material Ilikely to
contain biological evidence have been renoved and
preserved. The bill provides for a notice process in
cases where evidence wll be destroyed, and it

establishes a tenporary task force to |ook at other
issues involved in this energing field of technol ogy
and make recommendati ons on standards and practices in
cat al ogi ng and handl i ng evi dence.

Senator French shared a story about a boy in Denver Col orado
convicted of nurder at age 15 that spent 10 vyears

Senat e Finance Committee 3 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



i ncar cer at ed. Fol | owi ng t he boy' s rel ease t he
deoxyri bonucleic acid (DNA) evi dence, retrieved and
preserved fromthe crinme scene revealed that he was in fact
i nnocent. He informed that cases such as the one nentioned
led him to sponsor the bill. He continued that this bil
requires police officers to retain wevidence in two
categories, physical and DNA. Once a person is convicted of
a crime and incarcerated, the small bits of biological
evidence remain preserved in a crine |aboratory. The bul ky
material is retained until the time of the trial. The bil
only applies to the nost serious of crines. The idea is to
retain evidence and ensure that incarcerated citizens are
i ndeed guilty.

Chair Stedman asked for a sectional analysis. Senator French
conplied. He referred to Section 1, which creates a new
provision in the crimnal code for the preservation of
evidence requiring state agencies and rmunici pal | aw
enforcement agencies to preserve all evidence that relates
to unsolved cases of nurder in the first degree, sexual
assault, and first degree sexual assault of a mnor. The
section further requires that biological evidence in these
crines be retained while a person is incarcerated in the
custody of the Department of Corrections (DOC).

9: 33: 30 AM

Senator French continued that if a piece of evidence is
physically large, the portions likely to contain relevant
evi dence remain preserved. A notice procedure found on Page
2, Subsection D of the bill outlines the proper destruction
of evidence. The Section further provides the nethod for
court ordered renedies if evidence is destroyed in violation
of the Section.

9:34:48 AM

Senator French continued wth the Sectional analysis.
Section 2, Page 4 and Section 3, Page 4 refer to the codas
sections that the Departnment of Law (DOL) requested. The
codas give DOL the ability to renove DNA data taken from a
suspect found innocent. This allows prosecution of a person
whose DNA is retained on the data base in the event of a
subsequent crime. He provided an exanpl e.

9:35:21 AM

Senator French explained that the DOL has the ability to
remove DNA data taken from a suspect who is later found
innocent. The state is allowed to prosecute if the evidence
is still on the database when a person is arrested for a
subsequent crinme. He continued that Section 5 establishes a
task force for the preservation of evidence.

Senat e Finance Committee 4 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



9:37:10 AM

Senator French expressed that the legislation will prove
effective throughout all areas of the state. He nentioned a
letter from Angela Long, chief of the police association
opposing the bill. He stated that since changes were nmade in
the judiciary commttee, M. Long has wthdrawn her
opposition. He informed of the close contact between DOL and
the Departnment of Public Safety. He opined that the
col | aborati on provides a good piece of |egislation.

9:38:45 AM

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the current process of DNA
storage. Senator French answered that the DNA evidence is
retained until a person is released from prison and renoved
fromthe registry. He nentioned that the state conplies with
the established legislation. He shared a story about a
nmur der case during his tine as district attorney. The police
departnents recognize the inportance of retaining evidence
and essentially perform already that which this bill
mandat es.

9:40: 43 AM

SUE STANCLI FF, SPECI AL ASSI STANT, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
SAFETY, testified about data storage and use of DNA sanpl es.

ORIN DYM FORENSIC LAB SUPERVI SOR, CRIME LAB SUPERVI SCR,
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY (testified via tel econference).
He spoke in reference to the question about DNA sanpling and
the current status of retaining sanples of biological
evidence indefinitely. He informed that this bill has an
inpact on the «crinme |aboratory in the retention of
bi ol ogi cal evidence and the nunber of sanples identified. He
recognized that in order for an agency to dispose of
evidence, they nust sanple it prior to disposal. Depending
on the case, clothing and bedding mght not be analyzed.
Wth this legislation, all itens are identified for
bi ol ogi cal inportance in the crine |aboratory. The change
induces a dramatic increase in the nunber of sanples
retai ned and evidence submtted. He nentioned the additional
funds required for storage space and an enpl oyee responsible
for sanple collection and additional workload associated
with the bill.

9:43: 54 AM

Co-Chair Stedman requested information regarding the
attached fiscal note. He asked about integration of the
crime |aboratory. M. Dym responded that additional storage
space s necessary regardless of when the new crine
| aboratory is constructed. He explained the need for
additional personnel to aid in sanpling the evidence prior

Senat e Finance Committee 5 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



to disposal. He opined that the provided fiscal note offers
the best estimate with the best vision of the future.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked for justification of the travel
request. M. Dym explained the travel request was for agency
training regarding proper storage of evi dence. The
requi renents for an accredited | aboratory include the proper
storage and handling of evidence. He stressed the inportance
of sharing the know edge with the state's user base, which
requires travel .

9:46: 22 AM

Co-Chair Stedman asked if a task force was necessary to the
process of the legislation. M. Dym explained that he was
not responsible for the requisition of a task force. Senator
French stated the necessity of the task force because the
obligation is new for both the crine labs and police
departnments across the state. He suggested a careful,
considerate, and collaborative process for a beneficial
begi nning. Co-Chair Stedman asked if the task force was
suggested at the request of the departnment or through the
creation of the bill. Senator French answered that the
creation of a task force existed in the initial |anguage of
the bill.

Senator O son asked about private |aboratories that m ght
store and process the sanples without the cost of a new
facility. Senator French answered that state prosecution
evi dence nust be housed in a state facility. He suggested
that expanding the existing crine |aboratory wthout
buil ding a new $100 mllion facility may suffice.

9:48: 27 AM

Senator O son asked about the American Cvil Liberties
Union's (ACLU) st andpoi nt regar di ng t he pr oposed
| egislation. Senator French stated that the Departnent of
Law (DOL) was in support of the bill because this process
offers the ability to prove guilt versus innocence.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the departnment supports the bill
Ms. Stancliff answered that yes the Departnents of Law and
Public Safety support the bill. Senator French clarified
that ACLU al so supports the bill.

9:50: 01 AM

Senator Huggi ns asked about the detractors of the bill.
Senator French responded that resistance, rather than
outright detraction existed from agencies conmmanded to
retain evidence. He stated that concerns of police chiefs
across the state were since alleviated.

Senat e Finance Committee 6 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



Senat or Huggi ns asked about prisoners and the bill. He asked
if prisoner’'s DNA was obtained. Senator French stated that
the bill does not address prisoners. He understood that
previ ous | egislation addressed DNA obtai ned from prisoners.

Senat or Huggi ns asked about Page 3, Line 21 and the term

"unintentional.” He asked why not substitute the term
"intentional." Senator French understood the concern
initially. He explained the neaning of the word
"uni ntentional ", as "only intentional destruction of
evidence can result in civil liability." Anything short of

intentional destruction of evidence can result in civil
liability.

9:52:26 AM

Senator Thomas asked why the DNA retained in the record is
retai ned while the paper record is destroyed.

Senator French expl ained that Senator Thomas is referring to
the data base. He explained that a swab is obtained from a
prisoner and anal yzed in the | aboratory which then takes the
sequence of DNA genes for entry into a database where the
information sits as a nethod of generating evidence. The
data is then purged if the person is found innocent. He
stated that the DNA is retained because it is personal and
val uabl e i nformati on.

9:54:16 AM

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTI ON- JUNEAU, CRIM NAL DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
expl ai ned that the adoption of the obligations for the state
police required nuch work. She stated that the bill does not
change the reasons for the DNA collection. She explained
that the legislature adopted a provision that allowed police
to obtain sanples fromthose persons arrested for a felony.
The | egislature al so adopted a procedure for people arrested
for a felony not resulting in the collection of DNA The
| egislature neglected to provide renoval from the DNA
dat abase people who were arrested for a felony, charged with
it and acquitted after trial. This bill adopts that
procedure. The  Federal Bureau of | nvestigation has
recommended the adoption of the procedure for people
acquitted of a crinme for renoval their DNA from the
dat abase.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the crimnal division is in
support of the bill. M. Carpeneti answered yes.

9: 56: 28 AM

Bl LL OBERLY, ALASKA | NNOCENCE PRQIECT (testified via
tel econference), spoke in support of the legislation. He

Senat e Finance Committee 7 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



stated that the support of strong evidence managenent hel ps
to solve cases. Regarding the task force, the data and
information gathered by the task force wll allow for
necessary changes and i nprovenents.

JOHN  LUCKI NG, POLICE CH EF SOLDOTNA (testified via
tel econference), in support of SB 110. He spoke of an
opposition letter, now null because Senator French and staff
have worked with the Departnent of Public Safety to overcone
initial concerns regarding liability of personnel and the
mai nt enance of bulky evidence. He voiced support for the
task force as an inportant conmponent of the bill.

9:59: 20 AM

Senat or French concluded that he appreciated support for the
| egi sl ati on.

SB 110 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb133
SENATE BILL NO. 133

"An Act creating a statewide electronic health
informati on exchange system and providing for an
effective date.”

10: 00: 16 AM

Senat or Thomas MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnment 1.
Co- Chair Stedman OBJECTED for di scussion purposes.

Senat or Thomas expl ai ned that Amendnent 1 del eted references
to the state as the one that heads up the operation of the
Heal th Information Exchange (H E). Amendnment 1 deletes the
designation of the state as an option for fully inplenenting
and operating the H E system He stated that it is not
necessary to have a big governnent operation when private
sector options exist, with the state acting in an oversight
role. The anmendnment puts in statute the expectations that
t he designated entity nust becone self sustaining through a
conbination of wuser fees and other private and public
fundi ng sources.

Senator Paskvan stated that he supports Anmendnent 1. He
expl ained that the fiscal note does reflect the change from
the state as a potential operator of the program He stated
that once the federal stinulus dollars are gone this entity
will be self sustaining operated through user fees. The
state's involvenent would then be as another supplier of
user fees. He opined that the solution was nodern and in

Senat e Finance Committee 8 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



response to Alaska's growh in healthcare needs. He
expressed full support of the Amendnent.

Co-Chair Stedman expl ained the fiscal note reduced operating
costs by $389.4 mllion as a result of four fewer full tine
enpl oyees.

Senator Paskvan clarified that the plan reduced six full
time enployees to two full tinme enployees. He understood
that the fiscal note is a worst case scenario. The actua
expenditures are |ess.

Co-Chair Stednman renoved his objection. Anmendnent 1 was
ADOPTED

10: 04: 24 AM

Senator Huggins asked for further clarification of the
adm ni stration's position on this bill as it pertains to the
federal stimulus funds.

Co- Chai r Stedman asked for representation from the
adm nistration to address Senator Huggi ns' question.

Senat or Paskvan understood that the adm nistration renuai ned
neutral regarding the bill.

W LLI AM STREUR, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, MEDI CAI D & HEALTH CARE
POLI CY, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, i ntroduced
hi nsel f.

Senat or Huggi ns asked about avail abl e stinulus funds and the
i ntended use.

M. Streur answered that the total noney avail able through
the federal stinmulus was $19.2 billion. Each state nmnust
submt their particular needs. He stated that $17.2 billion
of the $19.2 billion is for the providers submtting for
assistance for electronic health record deeds and rel ated
efforts as part of a health information exchange system
This includes 100 percent funding for the next two years
with the future ratio yet unstated

Senat or Huggi ns asked for an estimate of one hundred percent
funding for two years. M. Streur answered $17.2 billion for
two years. For Al aska, the anount is yet unknown and depends
on what the state submts.

Senat or Huggi ns asked for an estimate of the cost to operate
under this provision. M. Streur answered that the costs are
anticipated at $27 mllion about $25 mllion of which wll
be federally funded. The cost for ongoing operation is
| essened considerably after the first two years.

Senat e Finance Committee 9 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



10: 07: 25 AM

Senat or Huggi ns asked about the continuing operating costs?
He understood that a user fee existed to defray a majority
of the operating costs. M. Streur responded that follow ng
the first five years, the projection is for the collection
of user fees. The process prohibits the collection of user
fees at the onset of the program The state nust absorb the
cost provided by user fees until the program is up and
running with enough depth and spread across Al aska to deem
t he program usabl e.

Co-Chair Stedman informed that the fiscal note has $24.8
mllion in federal receipts for FY10 and $2.7 million in a
General Fund match from the state. He continued that $26
mllion in general fund match is also required in 2011. In
2012 $1,760,000 is the anticipated general fund match. He
stated that $1,080,000 is the approximte general fund
i mpact on the treasury.

10: 09: 16 AM

Senator Huggins intended to pass the legislation. The year
t he change takes place is the only question. He understood
that alterations to the state's health information system
are inevitable and mandatory. The efficiency of delivering
medi cal maintenance is beneficial for the patient. M.
Streur agreed with Senator Huggins. Medicare providers are
required to have electronic health records by 2015.

Senator Huggins stated that his constituents comrunicated
that he ought to vote affirmative for funds available
t hrough the federal governnment for the cost of transitioning
to electronic health records by 2015. M. Streur agreed with
Senat or Huggi ns.

10:11:16 AM

Senator O son discussed the rapid advancenent of technol ogy
for electronic communication. He asked if the state
subscri bes now wi th possi bl e advancenent prior to 2015.

M. Streur explained that nuch of the new technol ogy cones
with built in updates. Updates for the state are provided as
part of the core system for the next ten years. Health
i nformati on exchange technol ogy contains built in updates.
Co-Chair Stedman asked the bill sponsor to testify.

10: 13: 01 AM

Senat or Paskvan t hanked the conmttee for hearing the bill.

Senat e Finance Committee 10 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



Co- Chair Hoffrman MOVED that the commttee report out SB 133,
as anended with attached fiscal note.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

SB 133 was REPORTED out of Comrmittee with a "do pass”
recommendation and a new fiscal inpact note from the
Department of Health and Social Services.

#sbl71
SENATE BILL NO._ 171

"An Act relating to the permanent fund dividend of an
otherw se qualified individual who dies during the
qual i fying year; and providing for an effective date."

10: 14: 36 AM

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER informed that SB 171 would provide the
i ssuance of a Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD) check to a
personal representative of the estate or successor of the
deceased during the qualifying year. He noted that SB 171
treats deceased Al askans as living in terns of applying for
their final PFD. in fulfilling all eligibility requirenents
as other Alaskan citizens wunder the «current statute.
Exceptions are that an individual cannot apply if deceased.
The bill itself includes the application process. He noted
that the director of the PFD division was present in the
hearing for questions.

Co-Chair Stedman requested a chronological time span
illustrating how a citizen may or may not qualify if the
bill was enacted.

Senator Meyer answered that the issue was brought to his
attention by long term constituents whose |oved ones had
lived to fulfill the requirenents, yet had not received a
PFD. The deceased has to neet the sane requirenents as any
ot her Al askan neaning that the deceased nust |ive 180 days
of the year for eligibility. Co-Chair Stedman clarified that
the applicant nmust apply as required by statute, live in the
state, but "just happen to pass away in July or later."

10: 17: 29 AM

Senator O son asked if there was a difference if the
applicant is buried in the state of Al aska. Senator Meyer
answered that the place of burial nakes no difference.

Co-Chair Stednman asked if the bill in question affects

citizens in 2008 and 2009. He asked to know the bill's
ti meframe.

Senat e Finance Committee 11 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



DEBORAH Bl TNEY, DI RECTOR, PERVANENT FUND DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, answered Co-Chair Stedman's question
She stated that the legislation begins the qualifying year
of 2009 and applies to Al askans who pass away in the second
hal f of 2009.

Senator Huggins asked what precludes the deceased from
receiving the benefit currently. M. Bitney answered that
current regulations allow for applicants who pass away
during the application period only. The statute amended wth
this legislation states that a citizen nust be a resident
for the entire qualifying year. She stated that a resident
was defined as soneone |iving.

Co-Chair Stednman asked about proper notification to the
departnent that the deceased "passed on."

10: 20: 37 AM

Ms. Bitney stated that the death certificate allows
adm ni stration of the check.

Senator Thomas «clarified that if a person had all
qualifications fromJanuary to June of 2009 they qualify for
a PFD. Ms. Bitney agreed.

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to ADOPT work draft for SB 171
LS0804\ S.

Co- Chair Stedman OBJECTED for the purpose of discussion.

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, STAFF, SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, expl ained
the work draft. She explained that the work draft contai ned
three major changes. One change ensured that individual
applicants received a dividend at |east one year prior. She
stated that another change limts the dividend to residents
of Alaska. The final change allows a person to be present
for 180 days versus the entire year as was stated in the
bill.

Co-Chair Stedman renoved his OBJECTION. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

Co- Chair Stedman addressed the fiscal note, which is reduced
by $50,000 in interagency receipts as a result of one |ess
required position.

10: 24: 51 AM

SB 171 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

10: 25: 28 AM AT EASE
10: 26: 03 AM RECONVENED

Senat e Finance Committee 12 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



10: 26: 22 AM RECESSED
1:42: 23 PM RECONVENED

#sbl1l77
SENATE BILL NO. 177

"An Act repealing the termnation of licensing and
regul ation of sport fishing operators and sport fishing
guides and licensing and registration of sport fishing
vessels; and providing for an effective date."

1: 42: 43 PM

Senator Meyer introduced SB 177. This legislation addresses
the licensing and regulation of sport fishing for operators
and guides. The bill provides oversight of sport fishing
operators and guides. For the protection of guides and
clients, sone mninum standards are necessary. The |icensing
and reporting program is beneficial to both the sport
fishing industry and its resource nmanagers. Legislation
authorizing this program passed in 2004 with the intent of
giving the Departnment of Fish and Gane nore conprehensive
and credible information on the guide and the qguiding
activities. A need to create a basic standard existed for
sport fish business operators and guides including liability
i nsurance, first aid, Cardio Pul nobnary Resuscitation (CPR)
and in sone cases, United State's Coast Guard |licensing. The
program i ncreased the | evel of professionalismfor the sport
fishing industry across the state.

1:44:52 PM

Co-Chair Hof fman MOVED to adopt work draft LS0832\E, Kane,
4/ 13/ 09.

Co-Chair Stednman OBJECTED

DARW N  PETERSOQN, STAFF, CO CHAIR  STEDMNAN, gave an
explanation of the Commttee Substitute (CS). The CS
addresses the need for in-season replacenent of a fishing
guide within the Kenai River special nmnagenent area.
Currently, in order to guide on the Kenai River a guide nust
have current first aid certification, a coast guard |icense,
current Al aska sport fishing license, proof of enrollnment in
an approved drug testing program park use permt, and nust
pass the Kenai River Cuide Acadeny. This guide acadeny is
adm ni stered by the Departnment of Natural Resources and is
offered through the Kenai Peninsula College. The guide
acadeny was created to educate fishing guides in the areas
of habitat protection, state and federal fishing | aws, river
etiquette, etc. The CS addresses the problem of a sport
fishing business losing an enployee mdseason. The guide
acadeny is not offered during the summer, as nost

Senat e Finance Committee 13 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



instructors are professional guides thenselves. The problem
arises when a guide is termnated for msconduct, or is
unable to finish the sport fishing season due to a nmjor
nmedi cal situation. A business cannot hire a replacenent
gui de unl ess the person passes the acadeny, which can result
in tremendous economc hardship to the business. The CS
allows the State Division of Parks a replacenent waiver for
a business that |oses a guide in season, allowing the hire
of another guide on an energency basis w thout neeting the
gui de acadeny requirenent. The intent is that t he
repl acenent guide enroll in the guide acadeny at first
avai |l abl e opportunity, otherwi se the guide may not work in
t he subsequent season as the waiver only applies to the
sport fishing season in which it was issued.

1:47:48 PM

Senator Huggins asked if a guide was qualified but had a
nmedi cal problemthat put himout of work for one year, would
the waiver pertain to the remainder of the vyear. M.
Pet erson answered that the replacenent guide nust graduate
fromthe acadeny if he or she wi shed to guide the follow ng
year.

Senator Thomas asked a question regarding the requirenents
of the waiver. M. Peterson answered that requirenments apply
only to the acadeny. The requirenents other than that of
attending the acadeny such as CPR, coast guard I|icense,
first aid, park permt, etc still stand as requirenents. The
potential guide may only obtain enpl oynent m dseason w t hout
graduation fromthe gui de acadeny.

Senator Thomas clarified the graduation from the guide
acadeny is the single issue. M. Peterson answered yes,
because all other requirenents are available to the enpl oyee
through the various divisions or departnments except the
acadeny because the course is not offered during the sunmer.

1: 50: 09 PM

Co- Chair Hof fman asked about the fiscal note and the $344
t housand al |l ocated for personnel services. He asked to know
which positions are listed. M. Peterson deferred the
guestion to the sponsor.

Co-Chair Stednman renoved his OBIJECTI ON

Version E of the work draft was ADOPTED

CHARLES SWANTON, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF SPORT FISH,
DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME, answered the question about the

fiscal note. He stated that there was no reference to the
nunber of positions for personal services. He believed that

Senat e Finance Committee 14 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



eight or nine positions are required for data entry and
program managers.

Senator Thomas asked for the current fees for fish guide
licensing as conpared to hunting guides. M. Swanton
answered that he was not aware of the current fees for
hunti ng gui des. The fee for owner operator guide anong sport
fishing is $100 and for guides only $50. Approximtely $10
dollars of the $100 of the guide owner/operator fee is
collected for licensing, while the remainder is utilized for
the log book or data collection program For the guides,
$4.50 is allocated toward licensing fees and the renai nder
toward | ogbook and data recording.

Senat or Huggi ns asked about the | ogbooks and whether or not
the departnent uses the data for better fisheries
managenent .

M. Swanton stated that he required a nore precise
definition of "better fisheries managenent."

1: 53: 58 PM

Senator Huggins clarified his interest in enhancing the fish
popul ation. M. Swanton responded that previous venues
listed the methods to utilize data. The information needed
has not been collected by the departnent for this period of
time. This remains the only neans by which the harvest
information is collected.

Senat or Huggi ns asked when enough data is anticipated. M.
Swanton answered that the anticipation is difficult because
a wde array of applications for the information exist from
stocks that nmay or may not be heavily exploited. He admtted
reti cence about answering the question of an exact anount of
necessary data required to make good decisions in managing
fisheries. He opined that increased data enriches the
fisheri es managenent deci sion nmaki ng process.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the departnment supports the bill
M. Swanton answered yes.

1: 56: 49 PM

GARY TURNER, CHAI R, KENAI COLLEGE (testified Vi a
tel econference). He explained that there is unaninous
support for the change anong the Kenai River Acadeny board
menbers.

BEVERLY MNN, SELF (testified via teleconference), in

opposition to SB 177. She stated that she would like to see
the fees sunset or reduced considerably.

Senat e Finance Committee 15 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



MELVI N GROVE, MATSU, SELF (testified via teleconference), in
support of SB 177. He stated that he was in support of the
| egi sl ation. He asked for data regarding restocks to reduce
long lining near shore water. Data is not available. He
opined that the fees nust conme fromthe fishing |licenses as
opposed to the captain's pocket.

2:02: 34 PM

ANDY SZCZESNY, OWER ALASKA FI SH AND FLOAT, KENAI, testified
in support of SB 177. He informed that he worked as a guide
on the upper Kenai River. He noted the inportance of data
coll ection. He expected the agencies to enploy the collected
dat a.

REUBEN HANKE, SELF, SOLDOTNA, testified in support of SB
177. He spoke about the CS and the original task force by
the Comm ssioner of DNR He worked as a charter fishing
guide. He thought that the information gathered would
provide a spring board for decision making processes. He
understood that there were difficulties with the origina

col l ection process. He believed that the data was hel pful to
the Board of Fisheries. He spoke in favor of the CS and SB
177.

2: 05: 52 PM

STEVE MCCLURE, SELF, KENAI, testified in support of SB 177.
He thought it beneficial to gather nore data. He stated that
the board of directors for the guide acadeny were surprised
to learn that the absent guide issue was not covered. He
stated that the guide acadeny board taught him the
inportance of the acadeny's classes, but if a position
remai ns vacant the business suffers.

DAVID GOGE A, SELF, testified in support of SB 177. He
stated that there are many hazards present in the sport
fishing job, occasionally necessitating replacenent guides.
He spoke in support of the CS and SB 177.

2:08: 51 PM

RI CKY GEASE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, KENAI RIVER SPORT FI SHI NG
ASSCCI ATION, testified in support of the legislation. He
stated that the guiding profession is risky. Emergencies are
possi ble and substitute guides are occasionally required.
The current |aw book program exenpts Al aska from the new
salt water angler registry. He stated the inportance of the
energency |anguage. He spoke in favor of extending the
sunset . He bel i eved in i nsur ance, i censing and
certification standards.

2:10: 53 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 16 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



Senator Huggins asked about the cost of a sport fishing
license. He understood that the cost of business |icenses
was reduced.

M. Gease answered that the price reductions applied to
general business |icenses. A portion of the license cost is
used for electronic data entry. He understood that the
backlog a result of data input in paper fashion versus
el ectronic data entry. He stated the frustration addressed
was that the format was not user friendly. The | og books can
[imt people’'s collection so that it is real tinme data. An
efficient nmethod of data collection and i nput is necessary.

Senator Huggins commented that he liked the data and the
process, but "state governnment can always find a reason that
they need |ocal citizen"s noney to mmnage their
bur eaucracy. "

2:13: 47 PM

Co-Chair Stedman commented on the fiscal note for $462.2
t housand, which exists in the Governor's FY10 budget.

Senat or Meyer noted support of the CS

Co-Chair Stedman comented that the commttee was in the
process of creating with the Departnent of Fish and Gane a
recordi ng nmechani smallow ng the guiding industry to provide
tinmely and usable data. He suggested that Al aska may end up
i ke Oregon and Washi ngton wi thout the accurate reporting of
data. He stated that the commttee did not want to burden
the populous wth wundue charges, but wthout the data
regarding the fish caught in Al aska, the state may encounter
an irreversible problem

SB 177 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

2:15: 35 PM
#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:15 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 17 04/ 13/09 9:27 A M



